
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

CULTURE AND TOURISM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
to be held on

TUESDAY, 23 MAY 2017
at

7.00 PM
in

WITHAM ROOM - COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ

Beverly Agass, Chief Executive    

Committee
Members:

Councillor Stephen Benn (Vice-Chairman), Councillor 
Katherine Brown, Councillor Tracey Forman, Councillor Mrs 
Judy Smith, Councillor Judy Stevens, Councillor Mrs Sarah 
Stokes and Councillor Mrs Linda Wootten (Chairman)

Scrutiny Support 
Officer:

Anita Eckersley Tel: 01476 40 60 80 (Extn: 6517)
E-mail:                          a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1. COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

2. MEMBERSHIP

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3. APOLOGIES

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

5. CONSIDERATION OF THE REMIT AND WORK PROGRAMME OF THE 
CULTURE AND TOURISM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

To consider the remit and the work programme of the Culture and Tourism Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.

mailto:a.eckersley@southkesteven.gov.uk


6. CONSIDERATION OF ANY MEMBER TRAINING NEEDS TO SUPPORT THE 
CULTURE AND TOURISM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

For consideration to be given to any Member training that may be required for the 
Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

7. WYNDHAM PARK IMPROVEMENT PROJECT: BACKGROUND AND 
OBJECTIVES

Report FM0005 of the Cabinet Member for HR and Cultural Services.

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT



CULTURE AND TOURISM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee
Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for HR and Cultural Services.

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

23rd May 2017

Wyndham Park improvement project: background and 
objectives.
Report  Number FM0005

Decision
Proposal:

To provide the Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny 
committee with an introduction to the Wyndham Park project, 
background, outcomes and objectives.

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Matthew Lee Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member for HR and Cultural Services

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Steve Frisby
Grounds Maintenance Co-ordinator / Project Manager 
s.frisby@southkesteven.gov.uk
01476 406016

Paul Stokes
Business Manager, Venues and Facilities
p.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk
01476 406410

Daren Turner, Strategic Director
d.turner@southkesteven.gov.uk
01476 406301

SUMMARY

The project has been funded via the Heritage Lottery Parks for People grant programme 
which is designed to grant aid the refurbishment of historic public parks and cemeteries. 
The application process, made over two rounds (development and delivery stages), is 
designed to fund projects valued at between; £100,000 to £5 million.

Page - 3

Agenda Item 7

mailto:s.frisby@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:p.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:d.turner@southkesteven.gov.uk


In respect of Wyndham Park, a successful bid for Heritage Lottery Fund Parks for People 
development phase funding during 2014 enabled us to build up a bid for delivery phase 
funding - subsequently secured during 2016. 

The delivery phase funding is facilitating the delivery of a capital works programme including, 
an ambitious activities programme, appointment of a project specific parks community 
engagement officer along with an apprentice in Amenity Horticulture.  

The project is complementary to the corporate plan and will help the Council deliver many of the 
outcomes it has set out to achieve. 

The capital works will help us discharge our duty to preserve the heritage of the site for future 
generations to enjoy, and by creating a more attractive visitor focussed facility there is a strong 
case in favour of the park contributing towards growth of the local economy and tourism.  

RECOMMENDATION

No recommendation is required as this update was requested by the Chair of the Culture and 
Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

BACKGROUND 

Details & project objectives

Heritage Lottery funded element of the project 

The Park has a history going back to the 17th century and in 1924 it became the Town War 
Memorial ground. It has unique heritage features including Post WW1 memorial buildings 
and it remains a highly valued community recreational space

During 2012, working in partnership with park user groups, the broader community and the 
HLF, we adopted a park-wide approach in the development of our application for the 
Development stage funding, which we believe gave both strength and credibility to our bid. 
Development stage funding was awarded during 2014 and provided us with the funds 
required to develop a bid for delivery phase funding – successfully secured during 2016
(Typically stage durations are: Development 2 years, Delivery 3 years. However, with 
experience, time frames can be reduced)

The project objective is to reinstate design intent, improve facilities, improve accessibility, 
and renovate heritage features and buildings to preserve their legacy. Left much longer, it 
was likely that refurbishment costs would have increased to unacceptable/uneconomic levels 
- compromising both the heritage of the park, the landscape of the site and ultimately our 
visitor experience.

The delivery phase funding is facilitating the delivery of a capital works programme, activities 
and learning opportunity including:

o Building a new visitor centre, new toilet facilities and adult change facilities.

o Refurbishing the Memorial Arch and Memorial Shelter

Page - 4



o Refurbishing the former ticket office and to bring it back into use as a volunteer hub 
and community meeting room

o Refurbishing the model boat lake 

o Removing inappropriate fencing, replacing old seats and litter bins etc 

o Providing local CCTV 

o Replacing lost heritage features

o Reinstating lost horticulture

o Improved ecology (Delivered by way of associated partnership project with the 
Environment Agency)  

o Introducing 21st Century interpretation to encourage community use and 
engagement

o Providing learning opportunity for volunteers, the community and employees

o Up-skilling staff and training an apprentice in Amenity Horticulture.

o Rolling out a programme of events and activities to improve public understanding of 
the Parks heritage, encourage interest and use.

o Supporting volunteers and encouraging community ownership

o Encouraging community interest, community and civic pride

In addition the funding made provision for us to employ a dedicated Parks Community 
Engagement Officer along with an apprentice in Amenity Horticulture.

Green Flag Status:

During 2010 a management plan was designed to achieve Green Flag status and secure the 
external funding required to improve the Wyndham Park.

During the 2011 the Council secured our first Green Flag Award for the site and have since 
maintained the standard required to secure successive Green Flag awards. On completion 
of this year’s assessment we are hopeful that the assessors will once again reward us with a 
Green Flag award - our 6th. 

The Green Flag award scheme is administered by the Keep Britain tidy group and provides 
site visitors with reassurance that the Park is managed to a good standard and will provide a 
good visiting experience. The benefits to participants are external accreditation, improved 
reputation, national publicity, development of community and civic pride.

Composition of the project budget and economic considerations :

Funding stream Amount £
HLF grant 818,100
HLF payment  - increase in maintenance costs 10,000
Volunteer time – valued by HLF 141,150
SKDC capital commitment (budget provision already made, part capital part 
section106 funds)

112,688

Project budget total 1,081,938

Page - 5



The importance of high quality parks to economic growth and wellbeing of residents cannot 
be overstated. Parks contribute directly to the local and regional economy through tourism, 
employment and expenditure on park management and associated services, i.e. staffing 
levels within the café may increase relative to an increase in visitor numbers. Parks are an 
asset that encourage inward investment to an urban area, raise property values and 
encourage private and public sector investment. 
The ongoing income generated through realisation of the improvements (i.e. meeting 
room/visitor centre, events etc) will be ring fenced to help support the ongoing maintenance 
requirements of facilities.
 
People, the ecology and health benefits

Public parks and green space generally provide a focal point for the community to interact in 
a positive and enjoyable way. Wyndham Park has also experienced the benefit of people 
working together to improve a facility – the sensory garden and refurbished paddling pool 
are good examples of recent park-based partnership projects. 

Parks and green space are accessible to all members of the community and most people will 
find something that Wyndham Park offers something that will be of interest to them!

There is growing concern about the health of the nation and there is increasing evidence that 
nature and green open spaces in the urban environment are beneficial for both physical and 
mental health.

‘Clinical evidence suggests that exposure to an outdoor green environment reduces stress 
faster than anything else. Simply viewing nature can produce significant recovery or 
restoration from stress within three to five minutes’

Our partnership project with the Environment agency along with the landscape 
improvements will enhance biodiversity and improve the ecology of the site. 

Project governance

The project is managed in accordance with the Councils project management and 
governance standards.
Due to the significance of this project a comprehensive communications plan has been 
produced which includes regular updates for the all members and particular focus on ward 
members.

Key outcomes, what you will see:

Illustrated by way of PowerPoint presentation;

Conclusions / outcomes
Completion of the project will ensure that Wyndham Park is fit for purpose, for future 
generations to enjoy. The project will provide opportunity for the community to learn about 
the history and heritage of the site and other subject matters including; event management, 
horticulture, maintenance, management and ecology.

Wyndham Park will continue to be a highly valued area of public realm with a reputation as 
one of the best parks in the East Midlands.

Page - 6



Visitor will enjoy a good experience and depart with positive and well informed memories.
The impact of the project is measured annually against the reporting and evaluation 
requirements of the HLF. However the following snapshot provides a useful summary:  

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

The project Outline Business Case presented to Management Team  during 
2013 considered the options available. 

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

Existing internal resource and one full time employee funded via the HLF 
grant

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

Category Risk Action / Controls
N/A

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY & DIVERSITY)

This report is an update on the current position. Each part of the programme 
will require its own equality analysis to assess whether there is a negative or 
positive impact relating to protected characteristics.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

Considered during the project planning process; localised CCTV,  improved 
lighting and building security have been designed in.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

          This report focuses on the delivery of the project relating to the Wyndham Park 
facility upgrade.  Consideration is also underway with respect to the ongoing 
expenditure that will be incurred in providing and maintaining the facilities 
once the implementation of the improvements has been undertaken.  As the 
park is contained within the Grantham Special Expense Area (SEA), the 
ongoing operational costs and maintenance works will be met from the 

Measure Performance Year Performance Year Notes
Green Flag status 0 2010 Achieved * 2016 *5th year in succession

Trip Advisor 9th 2014 7th Current Out of 24 local 
attractions

Overall satisfaction rating 77% 2014 77 % 2016 Anticipate increase on 
completion of the  
improvement works  

Number of volunteer hours 
current committed to the 
project 

67 hours 2014 568 hours 2016

Number of visitors 386535 pa 2012 608820 pa 2016

Page - 7



taxpayers of the SEA and careful financial modelling will need to be 
undertaken to ensure this is sustainable in the medium to long term.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

Funding for the projects outlined in this report will be provided from various 
sources including Heritage Lottery grant and s.106 planning agreements. 
Both sources of funding may set out conditions to be satisfied as part of the 
funding provision. Any use of this funding for delivery of projects must ensure 
that the conditions are met.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

None

10. APPENDICES

 Letter from the Heritage Lottery Fund dated the 18th July 2016 – Appendix A
 Standard terms of Heritage Lottery Fund Parks for People Grant – Appendix B

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Attached as appendices 

Page - 8



Page - 9



Page - 10



Page - 11



Page - 12



Page - 13



Page - 14



Page - 15



Page - 16



Page - 17



Page - 18



Page - 19



Page - 20



Page - 21



Page - 22


	Agenda
	7 Wyndham Park improvement project: background and objectives
	FM0005 Appendix A Letter from the Heritage Lottery Fund dated 18th July 2016
	FM0005 Appendix B - Standard Terms of Heritage Lottery Fund Parks for People Grant


